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August 22, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health, to
enter into a sole source agreement with Bi-State Primary Care Association, (Vendor #166695),
525 Clinton Street, Bow, NH 03304 to provide Annual Inter-Professional Collaborative
Conferences, in an amount not to exceed $200,580, effective September 1, 2019 or upon date of
Governor and Executive Council approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2022. 100%
Federal Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Years (SFY) 2020, 2021, and 2022,
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating
budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances
between state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-22150000HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH
AND COMMUNITY SERVICES, CDC ORAL HEALTH GRANT

SFY Class/Account Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $66,580

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $67,000

2022 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080502 $67,000

Total $200,580

EXPLANATION

This request is sole source because Bi-State Primary Care Association (Bi-State) hosts
the annual Primary Care Conference and would be able to fully incorporate the Inter-Professional
Collaborative Conference into the planned agenda each year. The target population of primary
care, oral health, and behavioral health professionals from Federally Qualified Health Centers
(FQHCs) and Dental Health Professional Shortage Areas (DHPSAs) are all active annual
participants at the Bi-State Primary Care Conference.



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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The purpose of the Inter-Professlonal Collaborative Conference is to promote inter
professional collaboration, patient-centered care, and provider knowledge and awareness of the
impact of certain dental conditions, including opioid use in dental procedures, on overall health.
The Department seeks to increase provider knowledge of the most current opioid prescribing
guidelines, non-opioid pain management options, and best practice screening guidelines for
opioid addiction Previously a lack of knowledge amongst providers on the relative risks and
benefits of prescribing opioids for the management of acute and chronic pain has contributed
unfavorably to New Hampshire's opioid epidemic.

The Contractor will design, plan, coordinate, and implement an Annual Inter-Professional
Collaborative Conference. Through the Annual Inter-Professional Collaborative Conferences, the
Contractor will increase the knowledge of healthcare professionals in DHSPAs regarding how to
provide integrated and comprehensive care to people who are at risk for, or have substance use
disorders. The Department anticipates that improving integrated and comprehensive care for
those at risk for substance use disorder will reduce the number of people newly diagnosed with
substance use disorder. Improving the coordination of care between healthcare professionals of
differing specialties for patients already diagnosed with substance use disorder reduces costs
and improves long-term patient outcomes.

The Contractor will ensure each Annual Inter-Professional Collaborative Conference is

available to approximately forty (40) health professionals, statewide.

Bi-State's current membership includes the majority of the target audience for the Inter-
Professional Collaborative Conference, which places them in an advantageous position to
achieve maximum attendance. Additionally, Bi-State was named in the Department's Health
Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) grant application titled: "Strengthen Oral Health
Workforce Capacity to Prevent and Control Opioid Abuse in New Hampshire" to run a pre-
conference workshop on inter-professional collaboration to address the overuse of opioids in
dental procedures.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, the current lack of
collaborative knowledge between medical, dental and behavioral health professionals may lead
to delay in care, disease progression and an increase in healthcare expenses.

Population served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds. US Department of Health and Human Services
Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA), Grants to States to Support Oral Health
Workforce Activities. CFDA #93.236, FAIN# T12HP31859

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Je frey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Subject; Conference for Interorofcssionals (SS-2019-DPHS-24-CONFE)
FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The Slate of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I. IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 Slate Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Bi-Slatc Primary Care Association, Inc.
1.4 Contractor Address

525 Clinton Street

Bow. NH 03304

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-228-2830

1.6 Account Number

05-95-90-902010-22150000-

102-500731

1.7 Completion Date

June 30, 2022

1.8 Price Limitation

$200,580

1.9 Contracting Ofiicer for State Agency
Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

1.13 AcWflowledgement; State of , County of

On , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

l.,13.1 Sfgnature of Not^ Public or Justice of the Peace

rSeall
1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

, /Vgrvvg-Y
1.14 ^ttfAgency SigiMture ^ 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Li6/»/V1p/?Ri5 DiRt.c-h3^ DP OS
1.16 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

7 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

On:

1.18 Approval by the Gcwer^r and Executive Council (if applicable)

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO

BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified In block I. I ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereundcr, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, luiless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hercunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of

appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that

Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The Slate
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The Stale reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80;7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authori7.cd, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS

AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor

shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

Contractor Initials ^
Date Sl^//^



Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereundcr

("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions;
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default

shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, siuveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91 -A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERM INATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have autliority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. assignment/delegation/subcontracts.

The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign irrummity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $ 1,000,000per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

of 4
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificatc(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all rcnewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificatc(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and arc
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate{s) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment ofany Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in iliis Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor ofany party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

16. waiver of BREACH. No failure by the Stale to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a paity hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
lime of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Conference for Interprofesslonals

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor shall submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New Hampshire
General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities and
expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance therewith.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall facilitate a total of three (3) one-(1)-day Annual Interprofessional
Collaborative Conferences (AlCC) on the day preceding or following the Bi-State
annual Primary Care Conference in May of each year of the contract.

2.2. The Contractor shall design, plan, coordinate, and implement the AlCC for dental,
primary care, oral health, behavioral health, and substance use disorder treatment and
recovery professionals in Dental Health Professional Shortage Areas (DHPSAs) in
order to promote:

2.2.1. Interprofessional collaboration.

2.2.2. Patient-centered care.

2.2.3. Provider knowledge and awareness of the impact of substance use disorders
on overall health.

2.3. The Contractor shall promote the AlCC through outreach and marketing mechanisms
already in place to promote the annual Primary Care Conference in order to ensure a
minimum of forty (40) health professional attendees.

2.4. The Contractor shall invite professionals from Bi-State Primary Care Association
member organizations within DHPSAs to attend the annual conferences.

2.5. The Contractor shall ensure conferences include, but are not limited to:

2.5.1. Assistance to participants in obtaining proof of attendance documentation by
applying for approval of continuing education credits which includes, but is not
limited to applying for approval of continuing medical and dental education
credits from both licensing boards, document attendance and generate
certificates of completion for relicensing.

2.5.2. The provision of continuing education credits no later than sixty (60) days after
completion of the annual conference.

2.5.3. Opportunities for collaborative learning during the conferences, which may
include, but not be limited to:

2.5.3.1. Breakout sessions.

2.5.3.2. Discussion panels.

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials

SS-2019-DPHS-24-CONFE Page lot 4 Date
Rev.09/06/18



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Conference for Interprofessionals

Exhibit A

2.5.4. Assistance to participants in obtaining all necessary continuing education
credit approvals for relevant health professions in attendance including, but not
limited to those who work in the medical field, social work, nursing, and the
dental field.

2.6. The Contractor shall coordinate with the manager of the conference venue to ensure
all logistical needs for the conference are met, which may include but are not limited
to:

2.6.1. Projectors.

2.6.2. Screens.

2.6.3. Microphones.

2.6.4. Speakers.

2.6.5. Table arrangements.

2.7. The Contractor shall distribute pre- and post-conference participant surveys regarding
the participants' knowledge and opinion of integrated services for individuals who have,
or are at risk of having, substance use disorders.

2.7.1. The Contractor shall create the surveys, which must be approved by the
Department before use.

2.7.2. Pre-conference surveys will be distributed and collected at the start of the
conference.

2.7.3. Post-conference surveys will be distributed and collected at the end of the
conference.

2.7.4. The results of the surveys will be sent to the Department within thirty (30) days
of the end of each conference.

2.8. The Contractor shall collect and report data on the AlCC to the Department's program
evaluator in order for the Department to evaluate the effectiveness of the conference,
in collaboration with the Contractor, for areas including, but not limited to:

2.8.1. Number of providers in attendance.

2.8.2. Types of professional disciplines in attendance.

2.8.3. Geographical area(s) represented by discipline.

2.9. The Contractor shall schedule a minimum of one (1) keynote speaker for each AlCC
from the speakers presenting at the Primary Care Conference that occurs directly prior
to or after the current AlCC.

2.10. The Contractor shall identify and recruit sponsors to offset the registration costs
associated with the AlCC in order to continue the AlCC post contract completion date.

2.11. The Contractor shall collaborate with the Department to develop a sustainability plan in
order to continue the AlCC post contract completion date that includes, but is not limited
to:

2.11.1. Meeting sponsorship goals.

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Conference for Interprofesslonals

Exhibit A

2.11.2. Identifying an agency to assist with coordinating logistics for future
conferences.

2.12. The Contractor shall contact the Department immediately for guidance in the event the
Contractor needs assistance with implementing the contract.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall submit an annual report on the effectiveness of the conferences
as described in Subsection 2.8, no later than sixty (60) days post conference.

3.2. The Contractor shall provide annual reports to the Department that include, but are not
limited to:

3.2.1. Total number of conference sponsors and total amount of sponsorship
received no later than February 1, 2020 and annually thereafter for subsequent
conferences.

3.2.2. Number of continuing education credits approved no later than March 30, 2020
and annually thereafter for subsequent conferences.

3.2.3. Number of continuing education credits awarded no later than June 30, 2020
and annually thereafter for subsequent conferences.

3.2.4. Number of expected attendees no later than April 30, 2020 and annually
thereafter for subsequent conferences.

4. Performance Measures

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure 10% of individuals report an increase in knowledge post
conference.

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of eligible providers in attendance receive continuing
education credits upon completion of the conference.

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall ensure the one (1) day conference occurs on the day preceding
or following the Bi-State's annual Primary Care Conference, in May of each year.

5.2. The Contractor shall schedule one (1) keynote speaker for the first conference no later
than January 30, 2020 and annually thereafter for subsequent conferences.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide aggregated data for annual conferences to the
Department including, but not limited to:

5.3.1. Total number of conference sponsors and total amount of sponsorship
received no later than February 1, 2020 and annually thereafter for subsequent
conferences.

5.3.2. Number of continuing education credits approved no later than March 30, 2020
and annually thereafter for subsequent conferences.

5.3.3. Number of continuing education credits awarded no later than June 30, 2020
and annually thereafter for subsequent conferences.

5.3.4. Number of expected attendees no later than April 30, 2020 and annually
thereafter for subsequent conferences.

Bi-Slate Primary Care Association, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Conference for Interprofesslonals

Exhibit A

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Conference for Interprofesslonals

Exhibit B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This Agreement is funded with 100% Federal Funds from US Department of Health and
Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA). Grants to
States to Support Oral Health Workforce Activities, CFDA #93.236, Federal Award
Identification Number (FAIN), T12HP31859.

3. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded Contractor's current
and/or future funding.

4. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in
compliance with funding requirements, which includes an in-kind match of an amount
equal to a minimum of $36,850 annually.

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure the annual $36,850 required match is in non-federal
contributions either in cash or in-kind related to directly carrying out HRSA project
activities and goals related to Substance Use Disorder (SUD) and be approved
by the Department.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide an annual report of itemized matching funds in
accordance with the Code of Federal Regulations, 45 CFR Part 75.306 no later
than June 15th annually.

5. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

5.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred
in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved
line item in the Budgets.

5.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth working day of each month, which identifies and requests
reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, signed, dated and returned
to the Department in order to initiate payment.

5.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient
funds are available.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Conference for Interprofesslonals

Exhibit B

6. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department-
funded programs and services and have records available for Department review, as
requested.

7. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7 Completion Date.

8. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed
to dphscontractbillina@dhhs.nh.oov. or invoices may be mailed to:

Financial Administrator

Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Public Health Services

29 Hazen Drive

Concord, NH 03301

9. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

10. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding
under this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-
compliance with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services
provided, or if the said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this agreement.

11. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line Items, related items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between
State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be
made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by

the Department.

3. Documentation; In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings; The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or inany
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
In excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursementin

excess of costs;
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08/13/18 Page 1 of 5 Date m



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ail funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such servicesat
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US Genera! Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such Information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information conceming a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained In
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Compietion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review ofthe
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contractwithout
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at ail times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshaland
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http://www.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of

Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or Imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - special Provisions Contractor Initials
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functionsand
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's perfomiance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

20. Contract Definitions;

20.1. COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department
to be allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established
in accordance with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

20.2. DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

20.3. PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a
form or forms required by the Department and containing a description of the services and/or
goods to be provided by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Contract and setting forth the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided
under the Contract.

20.4. UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall
mean that period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified
in Exhibit B of the Contract.

20.5. FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and
policies, etc. are referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean
all such laws, regulations, etc. as they may be amended or revised from time to time.

20.6. SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: Funds provided to the Contractor under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.
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REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4, CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT, is deleted in its entirety and is replaced
as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account In the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 9, DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY, is amended to add the following language:

9.4 During the performance of the Contractor's responsibilities under this Agreement,
Contractor shall not use, disclose, receive, collect, maintain, distribute, store, transmit or
in any way handle any confidential or sensitive information of any type, including but not
limited to protected health information as defined in HIPAA 45 CRF Section 160.03;
personally identifiable information; personal information; or any type of information that
may be used to determine, distinguish or trace an individual's identity.

1.3. Section 10, TERMINATION, is amended to add the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another
entity including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to Standard Contract Language Contractor Initials

Page 1 of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

1.4. Section 13, INDEMNIFICATION. Is deleted in Its entirety and Is replaced with the following
language;

13. INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall comply with any and all requirements of this Agreement; In the event that the
Contractor falls to comply with any such requirements, the State may pursue all available
remedies, at law and In equity, including without (Imitation any damages or losses It suffers from
Contractor's breach of this Agreement. The respective rights and obligations of Contractor under
this Agreement shall survive termination of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
nothing herein contained shaii be deemed to constitute a waiver of sovereign Immunity.

1.5. Subsection 14.1, Paragraph 14.1.2 of Section 14, INSURANCE, is deleted in its entirety and Is
replaced with the following language:

14.1.2. The Contractor Is self-Insured against special cause of loss coverage, covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 through self-Insurance.

Subsection 14.3 of Section 14, INSURANCE, is deleted In Its entirety and Is replaced with the
following language:

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer Identified In block 1.9, or his or her
successor, a certlflcate(s) of Insurance for ali insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also fumish to the Contracting Officer identified In block 1.9, or his or
her successor, certlflcates(s) of Insurance for all renewal(s) of Insurance required under
this Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date of each of the
Insurance policies. The certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are Incorporated herein by reference. Each certlficate(s) of Insurance shall
contain a clause requiring the Insurer to provide notice in accordance with the policy
provisions. The Contractor shall provide the Contracting Officer Identified In block 1.9,
or his or her successor, no less than ten (10) days prior written notice of cancellation or
modification of the policy.

2. Revisions to Standard Exhibits

2.1. Exhibit I. Health Insurance Portability Act Business Associate Agreement, Is not applicable to
this Agreement and is deleted in Its entirety.

2.2. Exhibit K. DHHS Information Security Requirements, Is not applicable to this Agreement and Is
deleted in Its entirety.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to Standard Contract Language Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

CERTiFiCATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V. Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE i - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ■ CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

MM Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initiais
Workplace Requirements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name:

_

Date Narrji^ CK^Sj^cJ^c^-
Title:

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials
Worltplace Requirements ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medicaid Program under Title XIX
'Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federai contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

y/ 9-
lafo/ 'Date' Nam

Title:
o-

PcJ\J

Exhibit E - Certificstion Regarding Lobbying Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification;

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Govemment. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred." "suspended," "ineligible." "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant." "person." "primary covered transaction," "principal." "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded." as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled 'Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibiiity and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Contractor initials
And Other Responsibility Matters
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals;
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a'public (Federal. State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise ctiminaiiy or civiliy charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shail attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineiigibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in ali lower tier covered
transactions and in ali solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:

W? h
Date ̂  ^ *YV)a^6-5

Title:

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No, 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

Exhibit G
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In the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

t  ■ IIV ri ii~>i fDate' Nam

Exhibit G
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CERTIFiCATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name:

Date/

Exhibit H - Certification Regarding Contractor Initials
Environmental Tobacco Smoke

cu/OHHsni07i3 Page 1 of 1 Date,



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit i

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

Pursuant to Exhibit C-1 of this Agreement, Exhibit I is not applicable.

Remainder of page intentionally left blank.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT IFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

Date '
c

Title:Ly

Exhibit J - Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials,
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is;

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above Is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CU/OHHS/110713
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Approved by 0MB No. 0348-0046

DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES
Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352

(See Reverse for public burden disclosure.)

1. Typeof Federal Action:

1 A| a. contract
1  1 b. grant

c. cooperative agreement
d. loan

e. loan guarantee
f. loan insurance

2. Status of Federal Action:

^ a. bid/offer/application
—' b. initial award

c. post-award

3. Report Type:

1 A 1 a. initial filing
b. material change

For Material Change Only:

vear ouartRr

date of last reoort

4. Name and Address of Reporting Entity:

j  [ Prime ["^ Subawardee
Tier . if known:

ain-terr

GouO 03 2o*-(

Congressional District, If known:

5. If Reporting Entity In No. 4 is a Subawardee, Enter Name
and Address of Prime:

K) H- o 4- l4c&u41i •'
t^vuyian 5an^iM

'Pf<ascLn-h

Qy^coyd cJaao"-/
Congressional District, If known:

6. Federal Department/Agency:

l/S7:k^. o-f

7. Federal Program Name/Description:

^rtirrh
OnU fkcU4h

CFDA Number,/fapp//ca6/e: ^ 31*3^^
8. Federal Action Number,/f/rnown; 9. Award Amount,/f/mown.'

«  d^OD, SS-O
10. a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant

(If individual, last name, first name. Ml):

Ki/cnnrn^ f ^
^foddcu^ J ^

b. Individuals Performing Services (Including address if
different from No. 10a)
(last name, first name, Ml):

11. Information requested through this form is authorized by title 31 U.S.C.
section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activities is a material
representation of fact upon which reliance was placed by the tier above
when this transaction was made or entered into. This disclosure is

required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information will be reported to
the Congress semi-annually and will be available for public inspection.
Any person who fails to file the required disclosure shall be subject to a
civil penalty of not less that SIO.OOO and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Signature:

Print Name

Title: \/P

—

Hah/m c

* Pypanxms *

Je\ezMor\eUo.-.%0^'riJ^-OOOCX. nate:

Federal Use Only:
Authorized for Local Reproduction
Standard Form LLL (Rev. 7-97)
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF SF-LLL, DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES

This disclosure form shall be completed by the reporting entity, whether subawardee or prime Federal recipient, at the initiation or receipt of
a covered Federal action, or a material change to a previous filing pursuant to titie 31 U.S.C. section 1352. The filing of a form is required
for each payment or agreement to make payment to any lobbying entity for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of
any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with a
covered Federal action. Complete all items that apply for both the initial filing and material change report. Refer to the implementing
guidance published by the Office of Management and Budget for additional information.

1. Identify the type of covered Federal action for which lobbying activity is and/or has been secured to influence the outcome of a covered
Federal action.

2. Identify the status of the covered Federal action.

3. Identify the appropriate classification of this report. If this a followup report caused by a material change to the information previously
reported, enter the year and quarter in which the change occurred, Enter the date of the last previously submitted report by this
reporting entity for this covered Federal action.

4. Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the reporting entity. Include Congressional District, if known. Check the
appropriate classification of the reporting entity that designates if It is, or expects to be a prime or subaward receipt. Identify the tier
of the subawardee, e.g., the first subawardee of the prime is the 1st tier. Subawards include but are not limited to subcontracts,
subgrants and contract awards under grants.

5. If the organization filing the report in item 4 checks :Subawardee,' then enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the
prime Federal recipient. Include Congressional District, if known.

6. Enter the name of the Federal agency making the award or loan commitment. Include at least one organizational level below agency
name, if known. For example, Department of Transportation, United States Coast Guard.

7. Enter the Federal program name or description for the covered Federal action (Item 1). If known, enter the fiill Catalog of Federal
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) number for grants, cooperative agreements, loans and loan commitments.

8. Enter the most appropriate Federal Identifying number available for the Federal action identified in Item 1 (e.g.. Request for Proposal
(RFP) number; Invitation for bid (IFB) number; grant announcement number; the contract, grant, or loan award number; the
application/proposal control number assigned by the Federal agency). Include prefixes, e.g. "RFP-DE-QO-OOI."

9. For a covered Federal action where there has been an award or loan commitment by the Federal agency, enter the Federal amount of
the award/loan commitment for the prime entity identified in Item 4 or 5.

10. (a) Enter the full name, address, city, State and zip code of the lobbying registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 engaged
by the reporting entity identified in Item 4 to influence the covered Federal action.

(b) Enter the full names of the individual(s) performing services, and include full address if different from 10 (a). Enter Last Name, First
Name and Middle Initial (Ml).

11. Certifying official shall sign and date the form, print his/her name, title and telephone number.

According to the Papem/ork Reduction Act, as amended, no persons are required to respond to a collection of information unless it displays a valid 0MB
Control Number. The valid 0MB contml number for this information collection Is 0MB No. 0348-0046. Public reporting burden for this collection of
information is estimated to average 10 minutes per response, including time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and
maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other
aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction
Project (0348-0046), Washington, DC 20503.



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE

ASSOCIATION, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on January

31, 1986. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 86710

Certificate Number: 0004558281

SJ

p>
SB.

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 31st day of July A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I. .Greg White. do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of _ _Bi-State Primary Care Association .
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on
(Date)ate)

RESOLVED: That the .Vice President of Policy and Strategy
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the ? day of diOyilA-'t . 20 n.
(Date Contra<^f Signed)

4. .Georgia Maheras. is the duly elected
(Name of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this

Bv UlHilB
(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

'  , \

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires: //^S/2V

.Vice President of Policy and Strategy.
(Title of Contract Signatory)

ignature ofjlhe Elected Officer)

day of hUfiu/ft . 20 .
A.. . A

(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005



y^CORD'

BISTATE-01

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

JTHAMW

DATE {MWOO/VYYY}

7/31/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsementfs).

License AGR8150

Clark Insurance
One Sundial Ave Suite 302N
Manchester, NH 03103

(m^nV Eki): (603) 622-2855 Ne):(603) 622-2854
jthammAclarklnsurance.com

INSURERISl AFFORDtNO COVERAGE NAIC#

iNsuRERAtCltizens Ins Co of America 31534

INSURED

Bl-State Primary Care Association, Inc.
525 Clinton St

Bow, NH 03304

INSURER B; Hanovor American 36064

iNsiiRPRCiRSUi Indemnltv Comoanv

INSURER D:

INSURER e :

INSURER F:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT VWTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR

LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE
ADDL
INSn

SUBR
wvn poucy number UMITS

A X COMMERaAL Of NERAL LiABILITY

)e OCCUR OBVA340840 7/1/2019 7/1/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
,  1,000,000

CLAIMS-MAC DAMAGE TO RENTED j  500,000

MED EXP lAnv one oertonl
^  5,000

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY
J  1,000,000

GENT AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE
J  2,000,000

X POLICY 1 1 |lOC
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG
J  2,000,000

_
s

"a"1 AUTOMOBILE UABtUTY
OBVA340840 7/1/2019 7/1/2020

CXJMBINED SINGLE LIMIT J  1,000,000

ANY AUTO

:heduleo
ITOS

ffoiw

BODILY INJURY fPer 0«»0nl s
OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

aU^ only

sc
AL BODILY INJURY IPef acckJwti s

JC_ NC
AL

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer eeddenlT s

s

A UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE OBVA340840 7/1/2019 7/1/2020

EACH OCCURRENCE
J  1,000,000

AGGREGATE
s  1,000,000

DEO X RETENTIONS 0 s

B WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' UABiUTY

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER^XECUTIVE 1,

if yea. daacrttw undef
DESCRIPTION OF OPFRATIONS bakiw

NfA

WKVA340821 7/1/2019 7/1/2020

V PER OTH-
^ STATIfTF FB

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT
s  500,000

E.L. DISEASE-EA EMPLOYEE
j  500,000

E.L. OlSEASF - POI ICY 1IMIT
2  500,000

C

C

Prof Llabilility

Prof Liability

LHR76e745

LHR768745

3/28/2019

3/28/2019

3/28/2020

3/28/2020

Per Claim

Aggregate

1,000,000

3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES lACORD 101, AMUoiul R*iMiit« SctMduM, may Da Mtacftad IT mora apaea la raaulrad)
The certificate holder shall receive 30 days written notice of cancellation of the above referenced General Liability policy for any reason other than
nonpayment of premium. Such notice of cancellation Is solely for the purpose of Informing the certificate holder of the effective date of cancellation and does
not granL alter, or extend any rights or obligations under this policy.

/

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25(2016/03) (S> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Bi-State Primary Care Association

Serving Vermont & New HAMPSfflRE

BI-STATE VISION STATEMENT

Healthy individuals and communities with quality health care for all.

BI-STATE MISSION STATEMENT

Promote access to effective and affordable primary care and preventive services for
all, with special emphasis on underserved populations in Vermont and New
Hampshire.

May 2018
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Bi-State Primary Care Association

Serving Vermont & New Hampshire

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and

REPORTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING

STANDARDS AND UNIFORM GUIDANCE

June 30, 2018 and 2017

With Independent Auditor's Report



BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bi-State Primary Care
Association, Inc. and Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2018
and 2017, and the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets and cash
flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this Includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards Issued by the
Comptroller of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's Internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Bangor, ME • Portland, ME • Manchester, NH • Glostonbury, CT • Charleston, WV • Phoenix, AZ
berrydunn.com



Board of Directors

Bl-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary
Page 2

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary as of June 30.
2018 and 2017, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets and their cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Other Matters

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September
20, 2018 on our consideration of Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of their compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Bi-State Primary Care
Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed In accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

Portland, Maine
September 20, 2018



BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Balance Sheets

June 30, 2018 and 2017

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Grants and other receivables

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Investments

Investment in limited liability companies
Deferred compensation investments
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

ASSETS

2018 2017

$ 1,633,426 $ 1,510,977
621,791 575,709
51.425 41.757

2,306,642 2,128,443

115,705
87,117

131,337
326.393

111,040
114,269
95,264

353.108

$ 2.967.194 $ 2.802.124

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and related liabilities

Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities

Deferred compensation payable

Total liabilities

Net assets

Unrestricted

Total liabilities and net assets

$  305,736 $ 310,465
177,070 174,647
114.193 136.908

596,999

131.337

728,336

622,020

95.264

717,284

2.238.858 2.084.840

6 2.967.194 $ 2.802.124

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Operating revenue
Grant revenue

Dues income

Other revenue

$ 4,057.392
334,963
399.597

$ 4.105.494

290,154
261.061

Total operating revenue 4.791.952 4.656.709

Expenses
Salaries and benefits

Other operating expenses
Depreciation

2,632,572
1,957,406

26.715

2,730,078
1,843,471

26.715

Total expenses 4.616.693 4.600.264

Operating income 175.259 56.445

Other revenue and gains (losses)
Net loss from investment in limited liability companies
Investment income

(27,152)
5.610

(14,647)
5.004

Total other revenue and gains (losses) (21.542) (9.643)

Excess of revenue over expenses 153,717 46,802

Change in unrealized gain on investments 301 4.578

Increase in unrestricted net assets 154,018 51,380

Unrestricted net assets, beginning of year 2.084.840 2.033.460

Unrestricted net assets, end of year S 2.238.858 $ 2.084.840

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-4-



BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Net loss from investment in limited liability companies
Change in unrealized gain on investments
(Increase) decrease in the following assets;

Grants and other receivables

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) In the following liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued salaries and related liabilities

Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investments

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

Change in deferred compensation investments

$  154,018 $ 51,380

26,715
27,152
(301)

(46,082)
(9,668)

(4,729)
2,423

(22.715)

126,813

(4.364)

26,715
14,647
(4,578)

(144,748)

(1,112)

175,095
(89,994)
21.046

48,451

(4.324)

122,449 44,127

1.510.977 1.466.850

$ 1.633.426 $ 1.510.977

$  36.073 $ 95.264

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-5-



BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

Organization

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. (BSPCA) is a non-stock, not-for-profit corporation organized in
New Hampshire. The Association's mission is to foster the delivery of primary and preventive health
services with special emphasis on the medically undersen/ed, and its vision is to promote healthcare
access for all.

Subsidiary

Center for Primary Health Care Solutions, LLC (CPHCS) is a limited liability company formed pursuant
to the New Hampshire Limited Liability Company Act. CPHCS's primary purpose is to provide
healthcare Industry services and other industry-related consulting services. BSPCA is the sole member
of CPHCS.

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of BSPCA and its subsidiary, CPHCS
(collectively, the Association). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Income Taxes

BSPCA is a public charity under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a public
charity, the entity is exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned in accordance
with its tax-exempt purpose. Unrelated business income is subject to state and federal income tax.

CPHCS is a limited liability company; however, for federal tax purposes, it is considered to be a
disregarded entity and, as such, CPHCS's income, expenses, losses, gains, deductions and
credits are reported on BSPCA's income tax return. Management believes the services provided
by CPHCS are consistent with BSPCA's tax-exempt purpose and its revenue does not constitute
unrelated business income.

Management has evaluated the entity's tax positions and concluded that there are no unrelated
business income or uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the consolidated financial
statements.

-6-



BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30. 2018 and 2017

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and money market accounts.

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. All such amounts are considered collectible. Grant revenue is recognized as
revenue when expenditures are incurred. Grants whose restrictions are met within the same year
as recognized are reported as grant revenue in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Investments and Investment Income

Investments in equity securities with readily-determinable fair values and all Investments in debt
securities are measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets. Investment income or

loss (Including realized gains and losses on investments, interest, and dividends) is included in the
excess of revenues over expenses unless the Income or loss is restricted by donor or law.
Unrealized gains and losses on investments are excluded from the excess of revenue over
expenses.

Investments are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility.
As such, it is reasonably possible that changes In the values of investments will occur in the near
term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the consolidated
balance sheets and consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.

Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided over the
estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset and is computed using the straight-line
method.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents unearned grants or contracts received in advance of expenditure.

Excess of Revenue over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations include the excess of revenue over expenses. Changes
in unrestricted net assets which are excluded from the excess of revenue over expenses,
consistent with industry practice, include unrealized gains and losses on Investments other than
trading securities.

-7-



BI^TATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

Functional Expenses

The Association provides services to promote healthcare access. Expenses related to providing
these sen/ices were as follows for the years ended June 30:

2018 2017

Program services $ 3,637,833 $ 3,486,694
General and administrative 1.078.860 1.113.570

Total expenses $ 4.616.693 $ 4.600.264

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through September 20, 2018, the date that the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued. Management has not evaluated subsequent
events after that date for inclusion in the consolidated financial statements.

2. Grants and Other Receivables and Deferred Revenue

The Association provides services to promote healthcare access through numerous federal, state
and private grants. The Association has the following relating to grant and member sen/ices
activity:

2018 2017

Grant and member services billed and not received $ 545,436 $ 541,159
Grant appropriations not billed 4,606,930 4,614,762
Grant deferred revenue not earned 14.530.5751 f4.580.212)

Grants and other receivables $ 621.791 $ 575.709

The Association received advanced payments on certain grants with an unearned balance of
$114,193 and $136,908 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

3. Investments

Investments and deferred compensation investments are stated at fair value and consisted of
mutual funds at June 30, 2018 and 2017.

-8-



BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30. 2018 and 2017

Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 820, Fair
Value Measurement, defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction between market participants, and also
establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The fair value
hierarchy within ASC Topic 820 distinguishes three levels of inputs that may be utilized when
measuring fair value:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the
entity has the ability to access as of the measurement date.

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, such as quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices In markets that are not active, and other
inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs that reflect an entity's own assumptions about the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The asset's or liability's fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques
used need to maximize the use of observable Inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

The fair market value of the Association's investments are measured on a recurring basis using
Level 1 inputs.

4. Investment in Limited Liability Companies

Community Health Accountable Care. LLC tCHAG)

The Association is one of nine members of this entity. The Association's investment in CHAC is
reported on the equity method due to the Association's ability to exercise significant influence over
operating and financial policies. The Association's investment in CHAC amounted to $64,527 and
$93,970 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Association provided management and administrative services to CHAC amounting to
$167,966 and $1,200 during 2018 and 2017, respectively, which is reported in other revenue in the
statement of operations and changes in net assets.

Amounts due to the Association from CHAC for management and administrative services
amounted to $36,054 and $1,165 as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The balance is
reported In grants and other receivables.

-9-



BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

Primary Health Care Partners. LLC fPHCP)

The Association is one of eight partners who have each made a capital contribution of $500. The
Association's Investment in PHCP is reported using the equity method due to the Association's
ability to exercise significant influence over operating and financial policies. The Association's
investment in PHCP amounted to $22,590 and $20,299 at June 30. 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Association provided management and administrative services to PHCP amounting to
$55,818 and $5,346 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, which is reported
in other revenue in the statement of operations and changes in net assets.

Amounts due to the Association from PHCP for management and administrative services
amounted to $53,293 and $65,659 as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The balance Is
reported in grants and other receivables.

5. Propertv and Equipment

Property and equipment consist of the following:

2018 2017

Land $ 50,000 $ 50,000
Buildings and improvements 430,136 430,136
Furniture and equipment 38.194 38.194

618,330 518,330
Less accumulated depreciation 191.937 165.222

Property and equipment, net $ 326,393 $ 3^3,1^

6. Line of Credit

The Association has a $350,000 unsecured revolving line of credit with a local bank payable on
demand. The interest rate on the line of credit is Prime plus 1% with a 5% floor (6% at June 30,
2018). There was no outstanding balance on the line of credit at June 30, 2018 and 2017. The line
of credit was not utilized at any time during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017.

7. Concentrations of Risk

The Association has cash deposits in a major financial institution which exceeds federal depository
insurance limits. Because business needs frequently require funds in excess of the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured amount of $250,000, all funds in the Merrimack
County Savings Bank checking account are subject to a nightly sweep, which consists of high-yield
savings accounts in other FDIC insured institutions with no individual institution exceeding FDIC
limits. This strategy is endorsed by the American Banking Association. The bank provides monthly
reporting.

-10-



BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2018 and 2017

8. Retirement Plans

The Association offers a defined contribution plan to eligible employees. The Association's
contributions to the plan for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 amounted to $92,744 and
$98,059, respectively.

The Organization has established a deferred compensation plan for eligible employees in
accordance with Section 457(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. The fair value of the assets and
related liabilities for employee contributions to the plan are reflected in the consolidated balance
sheet as deferred compensation investments and deferred compensation payable, respectively.

9. Commitments

The Association leases various equipment and facilities under operating leases expiring at various
dates through December 31, 2019. Total rental expense in 2018 and 2017 for all operating leases
was approximately $56,030 and $58,046, respectively.

The following is a schedule by year of future minimum lease payments under operating leases as
of June 30, 2018 that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year;

Year ending June 30,
2019 $ 58,854
2020 29.862

$  88.716

10. Related Party Transactions

The Association's board of directors is composed of senior officials of organizations who are
members of the Association. The following is a schedule of services provided to and (by) these
organizations.

2018 2017

Members'dues $ 174,778 $ 149,068
Purchased services 35,432 52,040
Grant subcontractors (258,183) (388,112)
Grant subrecipient pass-through (107,066) (126,613)

-11 -
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION. INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2018

Federal Grant/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title

United States Department of Health and Human Services:

Direct:

Technical and Non-Financial Assistance to

Health Centers

Cooperative Agreement to Support Navigators in
Federally-facilitated and State Partnership
Marketplaces

Rural Health Care Services Outreach, Rural

Health Network Development and Small Health

Care Provider Quality Improvement Program
Passthmuah:

Communitv Health Access Network

Rural Health Care Senrices Outreach, Rural

Health Network Development and Small Health
Care Provider Quality Improvement Program

Federal

CFDA

Number

93.129

93.332

93.912

93.912

Total CFDA 93.912

State of New Hamoshire Deoartment of Health and Human Services

Grants to States to Support Oral Health Workforce
Activities

State of Vermont Department of Health

Grants to States to Support Oral Health Workforce
Activities 93.236

93.236

Total CFDA 93.236

Medicaid Cluster

State of New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Medical Assistance Program 93.778
Medical Assistance Program 93.778

Total Medicaid Cluster

Affordable Care Act (ACA) Maternal, Infant, and
Early Childhood Home Visiting Program 93.505

Grants to States for Operation of Offices of
Rural Health 93.913

Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of

Substance Abuse 93.959

State of Vermont Department of Health

Cancer Prevention and control Programs for State,
Territorial and Trial Organizations 93.898

Health Centers Cluster

Communitv Health Access Network

Affordable Care Act (ACA) Grants for New and
Expanded Sen/ices Under the Health Center
Program 93.527

Total Federal Awards, All Programs

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

Pass-Through

Contract

Number

n/a

102-500731 -90080500

03420-7210S

102-500731-47000144

102-500731-90073000

102-500731-90083100

102-500731-90073000

102-5000731-49156501

03420-7208S

Total

Federal

Expenditures

Amount Passed

Through to

Sub-recloients

n/a

$  1,459,660 $

332,926 209,172

180,218 153,521

9,435

189,653 153,521

179,463 106,203

623_

180,086 106,203

44,125

48,612

92,737

10,046

8,642

53,281

2,490

365,531

$  2.695.052 $ 468.896
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2018

1. Basis of Presentation

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant activity
of Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary (the Association) under programs of the
federal government for the year ended June 30. 2018. The information in this Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of the Association, it is not Intended to, and does not, present the consolidated
financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Association.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.
Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made in the normal
course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Pass-through entity
Identifying numbers are presented where available. The Association has elected to use the 10-
percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

Bl-State Primary Care Association. Inc. and Subsidiary

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and
Subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2018, and the related
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated September 20, 2018.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered Bi-State
Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Bi-State Primary
Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described In the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies In internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Bongor, ME • Portland, ME • Manchester, NH • Glostonbury, CT • Charleston. VW • Phoenix, AZ
berrydunn.com



Board of Directors

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and
Subsidiary's consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of
their compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Bi-
State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control or on compliance. This report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards In
considering Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Portland, Maine
September 20, 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE

FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER

COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

We have audited Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2018. Bi-State Primary Care
Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's
results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management's Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc.
and Subsidiary's major federal program based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance In accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform
Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Bi-State Primary Care
Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's compliance.

Bangor, ME • Portland, ME • Manchester, NH • Glastonbury, CT • Charleston, WV • Phoenix, A2
berrydunn.corn



Board of Directors

Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary complied, in all material
respects, with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary is responsible for establishing
and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Bi-State Primary Care
Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's Internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that
could have a direct and material effect on the major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of Bi-State Primary Care Association, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of
the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Portland, Maine
September 20, 2018
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BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION, INC. AND SUBSIDIARY

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2018

1. Summary of Auditor's Resuits

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report Issued:

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies} identified that are not

considered to be material weakness(es)?

Noncompllance material to financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weakness(es)?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for ,
major programs:

□

□

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Section 510(a) of Uniform Guidance? □

Unmodified

□ Yes 0 No

□ Yes 0 None reported

□ Yes 0 No

Yes 0

Yes 0

Unmodified

Yes 0

No

None reported

No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

93.129 Technical and Non-Financial Assistance to Health Centers

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs:

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

2. Financial Statement Findings

None

3. Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

None

0

$750,000

Yes □ No
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Bi-Statr Primary Care Assooation '

Serving VERMp}^ 4 New Hampsiure S,V
■I 525 Clinton Street Bow, NH 03304

www.bistatepca.org

61 Elm Street Montpeller, VT 05602

BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION
FV20 Board of Directors (July 2019 - June 2020)

Board Chair:
Martha Halnon, CPC, CAPPM, CMPE

Chief Executive Officer
Mountain Health Center

74 Munsill Avenue, Suite 100
Bristol, VT 05443

Phone: (802) 453-5028
mhalnon@mountainhealthcenter.com

Board Vice Chair:

Gregory White, CPA, CHFP
Chief Executive Officer

Lamprey Health Care
207 South Main Street
Newmarket, NH 03857
Phone: (603) ,659-2494

gwhite@lamDrevhealth.org

Board Immediate Past Chair:
Janet Laatsch, BSN, MBA

Chief Executive Officer
Goodwin Community Health

311 Route 108
Somersworth, NH 03878
Phone:(603) 516-2550

ilaatsch@goodwinch.org

Board Secretary;
Dan Bennett

Chief Executive Officer
Gifford Health Care
44 South Main Street
Randolph, VT 05060

Phone: (802) 728-2304
dbennett@giffordmed.org

Board Treasurer:
Edward Shanshala, II, MSHSA, MSEd

Executive Director/Chief Executive Officer
Ammonoosuc Community Health Services

25 Mount Eustis Road
Littleton, NH 03561

Phone; (603) 444-2464
Ed.shanshala@achs-inc.org

Richard Silverberg, MSSW, LICSW
Chief Executive Officer

Health First Family Care Center
841 Central Street

Franklin, NH 03235
Phone: (603) 934-0177

rsilverberg@healthfirstfamilv.org

Pamela Parsons
Executive Director

Northern Tier Center for Health
44 Main Street

Richford, VT 05476
Phone: (802) 255-5561
DDarsons@notchvt.org

Kris McCracken
President/CEO

Amoskeag Health
145 Hollis Street,

Manchester, N H 03101
Phone: (603) 935-5210

kmccracken@amoskeaghealth.org

Gail Auclair, MSM, BSN, RN
Chief Executive Officer
Little Rivers Health Care

PO Box 338; 131 Mill Street
Bradford, VT 05033

Phone: (802) 222-4637
gauclair@littlerivers.org



BI-STATE PRIMARY CARE ASSOCIATION

FY20 Board of Directors (July 2019 - June 2020)
Page 2

Scot McCray
President/CEO

Community Health Services of Lamoille Valley
65 Northgate Plaza

Suite lUMorrisvilie, VT0566I
Phone: (802) 888-0900
smccrav@chslv.org

Kenneth Gordon

Chief Executive OfTlcer

Coos County Family Health Services
54 Willow St.,

Berlin, NH 03570
Phone: (603) 752-3669
kgordon@ccfhs.org

FY19 Bi-State Board of Directors Committee Chairs:

(Note: FY20 Chairs to be assigned summer 2019)
■  Executive Committee: Janet Laatsch

■  Finance and Audit Committee: Ed Shanshala

•  National Government Relations Committee: Janet Laatsch

•  NH Government Relations Committee: Greg White
■  Operations Committee: Rick Silverberg (Ken Gordon after December)
■  Planning and Member Services Committee: Gail Auclair
■  VT FQHC CEO Council: Gail Auclair
■  VT Government Relations Committee: Gail Auclair



Stephanie C. Pagliuca
525 Clinton Street, Bow, NH 03304

P. (603) 228-2830 Ext. Ill
Spagliuca@bistateDca.org

SUMMARY OF QUALIFICATIONS

• Able to work independently and as an effective team member
• Thoughtful, balanced approach to decision-making
•  Experience in design, implementation and evaluation of programs and initiatives
•  Effective in building and managing partnerships
•  Strategic thinker; able to see the big picture yet attentive to detail
•  Strong oral and written communication skills

RELEVANT EMPLOYMENT

Bi-State Primary Care Association 1994 to Present
Bow, New Hampshire/Montpelier, Vermont

Director, Recruitment Center 2003 to Present
Mange and oversee Bi-State's Recruitment Center, a service focused on the recruitment and retention of
primary care health professionals for rural and underserved areas of New Hampshire and Vermont.
Write, manage and implement grants from public and private foundations including the Bureau of
Primary Health Care Health Resources and Services Administration, Center for Medicare and Medicaid
Services, the states of New Hampshire and Vermont, Endowment for Health, and DentaQuest
Foundation. Manage Bi-State's Leadership Development Program. Manage staff and contractors.

Program Manger 1998 to 2003
Developed and implemented a business plan to expand the scope of the Recruitment Center services to
include dentist recruitment. Designed, planned and facilitated regional recruitment conferences for in-
house recruiters. Facilitated collaboration between the NH Dental Society and Hygienists" Association
and other key stakeholders that resulted in the first ever comprehensive workforce survey of licensed
dental professionals in the state. Created and presented education sessions at various regional
conferences and meetings on topics related to recruitment, including the national and local trends
affecting the recruitment of a qualified health care workforce.

Program Coordinator 1994 to 1998
Established and managed a client base of 35+ organizations. Provided candidate referrals and technical
assistance on methods for successful recruitment of primary care providers. Maintained relationships
with professional associations and health professional training programs to facilitate recruitment of
needed health professionals. Created and implemented annual marketing plan to attract clinicians to the
state. Wrote ad copy and participated in the design of marketing collateral. Created displays and
exhibited at local and national trade shows.

Oxford Health Plan, Nashua, NH March to October 1994
Customer Service Associate

Provided customer service for health plan members regarding plan benefits, eligibility and medical
claims. Processed medical claims at 97% rate of accuracy.

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Arts Degree, Communications
Notre Dame College, Manchester, NH



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Vendor Name: Bl-State Primary Care Association

Name of Program/Service: Oral Health Workforce Integration Yr 1

BUDGET PERIOD: FY 20

Name & Title Key Administrative Personnei

Annual'Salary ot

Key

Administrative

Personnel

Percentage of

Salary Paid by

Contract

Total Salary'

Amount Paid by

Contract

Stephanie Paaliuca, Director, Recruitment Center $93,187 5.05% $4,705.00

TOTAL SALARiES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line item 1 ot Budget request) $4,705.00

Key Administrative Personnel are top-level agency leadership {Executive Director. CEO, CFO, etc.).
These personnel MUST be listed, even If no salary is paid from the contract. Provide their name,
title, annual salary and percentage of annual salary paid from the agreement.



Vendor Name:

KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Bi-State Primary Care Association

Name of Program/Service: Oral Health Workforce Integration Yr 2

BUDGET PERIOD: FY21

Name & Title Key Administrative Personnel

Annual-Salary of,

Key

Administrative

Personnel

Percentage of

Salary Paid by

Contract.

Total Salary

Amount Paid by

Contract

Stephanie Paqliuca, Director, Recruitment Center $95,982 6.12% $5,874.00

,

TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) $5,874.00

Key Administrative Personnel are top-level agency leadership (Executive Director, CEO, CFO, etc.).
These personnel MUST be listed, even if no salary is paid from the contract. Provide their name,
title, annual salary and percentage of annual salary paid from the agreement.



Vendor Name:

KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Health and Human Services

Bi-State Primary Care Association

Name of Program/Service: Oral Health Workforce Integration Y3

BUDGET PERIOD: FY22

Name & Title.Key Administrative PersonneP

Annual Salary ot

Key

Administrative

. Personnel

Percentage of

Salary Paid by.

Contract

Total Salary

Amount Paid by

Contract

Stephanie Pagliuca, Director, Recruitment Center $98,862 5.05% $4,992.00

f

TOTAL SALARiES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) $4,992.00

Key Administrative Personnel are top-level agency leadership (Executive Director, CEO, CFO, etc.).
These personnel MUST be listed, even If no salary Is paid from the contract. Provide their name,
title, annual salary and percentage of annual salary paid from the agreement.


